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SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollarsxeept share data)

September 30, December 31,

2009 2008
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Fixed maturity investments, trading at fair valle..............cccccciiiiiiieeeee, $ 3,045,992 $ 3,781,104
Preferred stock, trading at fair Value ......ccccceo oo 78,888 79,767
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ...........coo e 413,399 824,613
Other INVESTMENTS ...oei ittt e e e e s ber e e e e st e e e e e s anbbeeeeeeeannees 22,899 2
Funds withheld at INtEreSt.........ooii i 545,816 1,748,768
TOtAl INVESIMENES ... e e e st e e e e st e e e e s snbbeeeaeenn 4,106,994 4%7,024
Accrued iNtEreSt rECEIVADIE ...........uiii e 24,495 35,473
Reinsurance balances and risk fees receivable..............ocoooiiiii 148,827 353,579
Deferred aCqUISILION COSES ......uuuiiiiiiiiieeeeee ettt e e e e ee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ennnnanes 315,824 37547
Amount recoverable frOM FEINSUIEIS ......... oo eeeeeeeeitietiaaaeeeee e aeeneeeeeeeaaaaaaeaeaaaeas 589,670 711,576
Present value of iNn-force DUSINESS ... 38,912 40,105
L0 1 g [=T = TS £ J U P TR ORRPPPP 50,085 41,750
Current iNCOME tax rECEIVADIE ............o e 8,736 8,811
DETEITE TAX @SSO ...ttt teeee et e e eeeee e e e et e e et e e e et e e et e e e et e e eeeeee e e ee e e eeeeeeeeeeeaeaeeeans 3,061 3,061
TOUAI ASSELS ...ttt oecemne bbb bbbttt $ 5286604 _$ 8,026,854
LIABILITIES
Reserves for future policy benefits ... ..o $ 1,543,960 $ 4,06B0
Interest sensitive contract IabIlItIES ... .ereeeiiiiiiie e 1,802,617 2,65
Collateral finance facilities ....... ... e 1,300,000 0,000
Accounts payable and other liabilities .........ccooiii s 147,896 459,792
Reinsurance balances payable ...........oo oo ————— 117,874 248,065
Deferred tax iability............oooi i eeee e 221 221
LONG TEIM AT ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et e et e eaeeaeene et e eteeteeneeneeeeenas 129,500 129,500
TOtAl HADIEES ......cvevieveeicee ettt s ettt r e b et e s re s e sne e 5,042,068 9,874,185
MEZZANINE EQUITY
Convertible cumulative participating preferred rédsa (liquidation preference, $705.1
L1011 TTo T o ) PP PPPPUPRPPPRP 555,857 555,857
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
DEFICIT
Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ deficit
Ordinary shares, par value $0.01:
Issued 68,383,370 shares (2008 — 68,383,37.0)...cccccciiirrrirreeeiiiiiieeeesiiireeeeesnsrreeeaeaans 684 684
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares, parev@@iO1;
Issued: 5,000,000 shares (2008 — 5,000,000 ccumme.evrrrreeiiiirrirresiiiiirereessasrneeessaneneees 125,000 125,000
PaXe [0 [1iToTq =TI o 2= o KT T o7= o = | SRR 1,217,359 16878
[ ] e 11 (=10 o (] 11| SRR (1,662,532) (3,752,716)
Total Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ defiC..........uuvvevviiiieiieeiiiiiicemeeies (319,489) (2,410,154)
NONCONIOIING INEEIEST ......viiveieieeieeee ettt ettt ettt et et e et e teere e e eteeteeaeanis 8,168 6,966
TOTAI GEFICIE +.vvvvevveteieisee ettt (311,321) (2,403,188)
Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and total dBfiC...............ccccevveeieeeeeee e $ 5286604 $ 8,026,854

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollarsxeept share data)

Three months ended Nine months ended

September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenues
Premiums earned, Net ...........cccvevvvvvreceenniee e $ 104,417 $ 389,086 $ 3386, $ 1,201,916
Fee and other inCome.........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee s 2,326 1,161 5,738 60,5
Investment iNCOMe, Net.........cooovvvviesimmeeme e 43,729 88,457 135,723 295,541
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)........... 191,098 (475,380) 212,971 %4,379)
Gain on Ballantyne Re de-consolidation............... - - 1,150,114 -
Gain on extinguishment of debt... - - 53,545 -
Change in value of embedded der|vat|ves net....... 11,305 (36,474) 304,925 (38,615)

Total FEVENUES ...eveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 352,875 (33,150) 2,189,299 12,023
Benefits and expenses
Claims and other policy benefits .........cccccvvvveennnn. 98,333 386,848 (129,174) ,139,966
Interest credited to interest sensitive contract

HabIlItIES .. 14,472 16,301 6,391 58,927
Acquisition costs and other insurance expenses,.net 18,854 215,191 95,457 387,049
Operating EXPENSES........uurirrirrreeererieeeeeeerrrrrreeeeeeees 7,372 29,694 46,041 107,714
Collateral finance facilities expense ........ccccveeee.... 8,829 54,994 31,195 193,62
INtErESt EXPENSE ...o.veeeeevecveeeeeee s eemeeeee e eee e eeeees 1,165 2,510 4,840 7,570

Total benefits and expenses .. . 149,025 705,538 94,750 1,893,849
Income (loss) from continuing operatlons before

INCOME tAXES....cccceeerierireireeee e eeee e 203,850 (738,688) 2,094,549 (1,881,826)
Income tax (expense) benefit..............cceeeeeevenrnn.n. (1,050) 14,996 (3,163) 8,552
Income (loss) from continuing operations............. 202,800 (723,692) 2,091,386 (1,873,274)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of

FEIALEA TAXES ... eeemeee e - 8,776 - (43,001)
Consolidated income (10SS)......cvevveiiieiieeaiiiiinnnee. 202,800 (714,916) 2,091,386 (1,916,275)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling

INEEIESE .ttt oo en e e (910) 1,038 (1,202) 1,137
Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary

SNArENOIAETS. ...t 201,890 $ (713,878) $ 2,090,184  $ (1,915,138)
Amounts attributable to ordinary shareholders:
Income (loss) from continuing operations............. 201,890 $ (722,654) $ 2,090,184 $ (1,872,137)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations......... - 8,776 - (43,001)
Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary

SNArENOIAETS. ...t 201,890 $ (713,878) $ 2,090,184 $ (1,915,138)
Income (loss) per ordinary share attributable to

ordinary shareholders:
Basic income (loss) per ordinary share
Income (loss) from continuing operations............. 291 $ (10.57) % 30.13 $ (27.38)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations......... - $ 0.13 $ - $ (0.63)
Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary

Shareholders ..........coeveveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s 291 $ (10.44) 3 3013  $ (28.01)




Diluted income (loss) per ordinary share

Income (loss) from continuing operations............. _$ 0.92 $ (10.57) % 9.57 $ (27.38)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations......... $ - $ 0.13 $ - $ (0.63)
Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary

Shareholders .........ccoeeveeveeieceeee e $ 0.92 $ (10.44) % 9.57 $ (28.01)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollars)

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary

SharehOlders............ocoeveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 201,890 $ (713,878) $ 2,090,184  $ (1,915,138)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Reclassification adjustment for net realized and

unrealized losses included in net (loss) income.... - - - (26,107)
Net unrealized depreciation on investments, net of

income taxes and deferred acquisition costs....... - - - (26,107)
Cumulative translation adjustment............cccece....... - (29,960) - (24,590)
Benefit Plans.........cccooveuieieee it 2,344 2,344
Other comprehensive income (I0SS) ..........cceeu..... - (27,616) - (48,353)
Comprehensive income (10SS) ........ccoeeevveeecveeenen. $ 201,890 $ (741,494) $ 2,099,18 $ (1,963,491)
Comprehensive (loss) attributable to the

NONCONtrolling iNtErest .............ooveveeeeeereerererenanns - - - (203)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to

ordinary shareholders.............ccoooveeeeeeennn. $ 201,890 $ (741,494) $ 2,090,184 $ (1,963,694)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollarsxeept share data)

Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,

2009 2008

Share capital:
Ordinary shares:

Beginning and end of PEHOM............coiiiiieeeiee e $ 684 $ 684
Non cumulative perpetual preferred shares:

Beginning and end Of PEHIOU.............ceieeeeeieeeete ettt 125,000 125,000
Additional paid-in capital:

Beginning Of PEHOA ... ee e ee e e e e e e e e e e e s s r e e e e e e aaaaaaaaa e 1,216,878 Y BB6

OPLION EXPEINSE ...ttt ememmem e ettt e et e e teete e e et e eteeteeseess et eeaeeseeteeteeseeneesaesaeaneans 481 1,587

[ aTo I o) i oY= o T SRR UOPPPRRP 1,217,359 1,216,473
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on inveshents net of income taxes and

deferred acquisition costs

Beginning Of PEHOA ... ee e ee e e e e e e e e e e s e r e e e e e e aaaaaaaeaaes - 26,310

L1 g = TaTo T INT a 18 0 1= 5 (o o P EEERPRRR - (26,310)

=T I ] 1= o o PSP - -

Cumulative translation adjustment

Beginning Of PEHIOMA ... ...t a e e e e e e e - 24,590

Change in Period (NEt Of tAX) ....eiiiiiiiie i e e e e e e e e - (24,590)

[T o] i o 1= o o [OOSR - -

Benefit plans

Beginning Of PEHIOM .........ueeiie ettt e e - (2,344)

ChaNGE N PEIIOU. ........iiveieeeeeeie ettt ettt ettt e teeteeaeeaeereeaeeteeteareas - 2,344

=T I} 1= o o PP EEEPUPPRRR - -
Total accumulated other comprehensive INCOME (I0SS).....cccoviviiiiieeiiiiniiieeee e, - -
Retained deficit:

Beginning Of PEHIOMA ... ...t a e e e e e e e (3,752,716) 1,042,399)

NEE INCOME (I0SS) ...t memeae e eesee s s s e s s e e e s s et ettt e et ee e, 2,090,184 (1,915,138)

[ aTo I o) i o 1= o o SR RPRSOPPPRRR (1,662,532) (2,957,537)
Total Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ defidt .............cccveveveevireeeeeceeeeeeenns $ (319,489) $ (1,615,380)
Noncontrolling interest:

Beginning Of PEHIOMA ... ...t a e e e e e e 6,966 9,025

Change in Period (N OF TAX) .........c.eeeeeeeeeeee e ee ettt ee et 1,202 (1,340)

1o oY i o Y=Y e o RS 8,168 7,685
Total ShAreholders’ AEfiCit..............cvoviveveeeeeeeeeeeee oottt $ (311,321) $ (1,607,695)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollars)

Nine months ended

September 30, September 30,
2009 2008
Operating activities
Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary shardBod ...............cccccvvviieiiiiii e, $ 2,090,184 $ (1,915,138)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) incomeet cash used in operating activities:
Net realized and unrealized (QaiNS) l0SSES ....cccvevieeeiii i (212,971) 1,452,516
Gain on extinguishment of debt ... (53,545) -
Non cash gain on de-consolidation of Ballantyne.Re...............oooooiiiiiiiiiii, (1,150,114) -
Changes in value of embedded derivatives, Net...............uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (304,925) 38,615
Amortization of discount on fixed maturity investnte and preferred stock......................... - 281
Amortization of deferred acqUISItION COSES ...ttt 36,112 113,894
Amortization and write down of present value ofdmee business...............ccooooiiiiiiicennns 1,193 5,263
Write-off of fixed assets associated with the sdlthe Acquired BUSINESS..........ccvvvvvveenen... 6,021 -
Amortization of deferred tranSACHION COSES . iurrriiiieiiiiiiiiie e 1,961 21,389
Depreciation Of fIXEA @SSELS......iiiiiii i eaeaaaaee s 957 6,593
(@) 1[0 0 I3t 0 1= 1= PRSPPI 481 1,587
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrollingeI@St.............ccoovveiiiiiiiiiieie e 1,202 (1,137)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accrued INterest reCeIVADIE ...........i i e 4,592 16,185
Reinsurance balances and risk fees receivable............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e, 131,607 557,123
Deferred aCqUISItION COSES ... .uuuuuiiiiiiiieeeaaee et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ennnes 22,829 40,130
Deferred tax asset and liability ............cooioii e - 9,123
(01 1=T g TS £ U (253,951) 54(567)
Current income tax receivable and payable ..occcce..eevviiiiiiiiiii 75 893
Reserves for future policy benefits, net of amouet®verable from reinsurers................. 2,103,251) (259,643)
Funds Withheld @t INtEIrEST.......iviiii i e e 1,202,952 (674,862)
Interest sensitive contract IabilitieS ... .vvrrreeiiiiiiiieeee e (11,601) (29,916)
Accounts payable and other abilitieS .........cocviveieeeicceice e 30,100 15,341
Net cash used in OPErating ACHVItIES. .......coeeeeveeirieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e s (560,092) (656,330)
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed maturity iNVESIMENTS.....ccoeeieiiiiiiiiee e (590,892) (256,452)
Proceeds from sales of fixed maturity invesStmentS...........cccccceieiiiiiiniiiciiieeeeeeeee 598,297 1,289,752
Proceeds from maturity and return of capital oééxmaturity investments .............ccccceeee. 292,437 466,327
Purchase of preferred StOCK ......... ... e (80) -
Proceeds from sale and maturity of preferred StOCK. ..o 10,649 3,167
Purchase of and proceeds from other iNnVeStMentS...........ccccooiiiiiieeeeee (54) 29,922
PUrChase Of fIXEO @SSEIS..........ccuiouiieceeceeeeee et eeteete ettt e teete et e e et e eteeteene e e eteeaeeaeans - 4,358
Net cash provided by iNVeStiNG ACHVILIES .......c.c.eoeeieieeiee et 310,357 1,537,074
Financing activities
Deposits to interest sensitive contract liabilities..............eeeveee, - 700
Withdrawals from interest sensitive contract lifil@h...................ooo oo (161,479) (251,769)
Payments on collateral finance facCilities ....cccccoooooiiii s - (412,666)
Proceeds from drawdown of Stingray facility ...............oooi i - 325000
Dividends paid on non-cumulative perpetual prefesRares..............ccccovevevevevereeesiemememee - (2,266)
Net used in INANCING ACHVILIES.............ommeereeeeeeerireeseseeteeeesesseseseeesesesesseseesesensesseseeeens (161,479) (341,001)
Net change in cash and cash equIValeNtS ..o (411,214) 539,743
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of PErQAQ.............c.cccveeieeieeeece e 824,613 822,851
Cash and cash equIvalents, Nd Of PO . .ceceweem.vevrveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereee e $ 413399 $ 1,362,594

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
September 30, 2009
1. Organization and Business
Organization

Scottish Re Group Limited (“SRGL”, the “Company”’wé&”, “our” and “us”) is a holding company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islanidls @aur principal executive office in Bermuda. Thgh our
operating subsidiaries, we are principally engaigethe reinsurance of life insurance, annuities anduity-type
products. We have principal operating companié€da@rmuda, the Cayman Islands, Ireland, and theedrtates.

Strategic Focus

As noted in our audited consolidated financialestants and notes thereto for the year ended Decedihe
2008, we have faced a number of significant chghsnover the past several years which required abange our
strategic focus. On February 22, 2008, we annalinoe pursuit of the following key strategies:

» Disposal of our non-core assets or lines of busin@sluding the Life Reinsurance International i@egt
and the Wealth Management business;

» Development, through strategic alliances or otheams, of opportunities to maximize the value of care
competitive capabilities within the Company, indhgl mortality assessment and treaty administratoal

» Rationalization of our cost structure to presempital and liquidity.

These strategies materially impacted the conducbwf business. In particular, we ceased writingv ne
business, notified ouexisting clients that we would not be accepting aeyv reinsurance risks under existing
reinsurance treaties and thereby placed our renmingaties into run-off.

During the remainder of 2008 and through the nioatims ended September 30, 2009, we took stepsetutx
on the strategies listed above. Below is a summ&B008 dispositions, as well as events impactingfinancial
statements for the nine months ended Septembe2(08®. For a complete list of 2008 strategic adticee our
audited consolidated financial statements and rtbergto for the year ended December 31, 2008.

 On July 11, 2008, we completed the sale of our Wesllanagement business and related entities with
respect to Scottish Annuity & Life Insurance CompaBermuda) Ltd. and Scottish Annuity & Life
International Insurance Company (Bermuda) Ltd., andAugust 5, 2008, we completed the sale with
respect to The Scottish Annuity Company (Caymaul) LThe sale of our Wealth Management business
generated proceeds of $9.3 million and resultednet loss of $4.9 million.

e On July 18, 2008, Pacific Life Insurance Compar®agific Life”) concluded the purchase of Scottish R
Holdings Limited and the U.K. portion of the LifeeRsurance International Segment for $67.1 million
after purchase price adjustments of $4.1 millidie purchase of the Asia portion of the Life Remasge
International Segment was completed on August PO82for an additional payment by Pacific Life of
$0.5 million. We recorded an aggregate loss of $8lion on these transactions in 2008. In Marcl920
the Singapore branch was closed and $6.1 milliomagfital was returned to Scottish Annuity & Life
Insurance Company (Cayman) Ltd. (“SALIC").

e On January 22, 2009, the Company, Scottish Holdigs (“SHI”), Scottish Re (U.S.), Inc. (“SRUS"),
Scottish Re Life (Bermuda) Limited (“SRLB”) and Stish Re (Dublin) Limited (“SRD”) (collectively, th
“Sellers”) entered into a Master Asset Purchaseefgrent (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Hannover
Life Reassurance Company of America and its affiliddlannover (Ireland) (together, “Hannover Ref)l a
Security Life of Denver Insurance Company (“SLDfdaSecurity Life of Denver International Limited
(“SLDI" and together with SLD, the “ING Companies”pursuant to which Hannover Re agreed to
purchase from the Sellers a block of individuat Iifeinsurance business acquired in 2004 from ti& IN
Companies, which block consisted primarily of tdifiereinsurance, universal life with secondary



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
September 30, 2009
Organization and Business (continued)

guarantees, and yearly renewable term businessAtipiired Business”). The Acquired Business did n
include business formerly reinsured from SRUS tdaBéyne Re plc (“Ballantyne Re”), as this business
was novated and assigned from SRUS to SLD effe@ember 1, 2008. In addition to the acquisitidn o
the Acquired Business, the Purchase Agreementralated to the sale to Hannover Re of certain asset
used by the Sellers in connection with the admmaiitn of the Acquired Business and retained bissire

our Life Reinsurance North America Segment andttaesfer of certain employees from certain of the
Sellers to Hannover Re. The closing of the trati@as contemplated by the Purchase Agreement cadurr
on February 20, 2009. In connection with the PasehAgreement, the transfer to Hannover Re of the
Acquired Business generally was accomplished ()uph the recapture of the Acquired Business by the
ING Companies from certain of the Sellers, andddssion immediately thereafter by the ING Companies
to Hannover Re of the Acquired Business under remsurance agreements and (ii) in specific instance
by a novation of existing reinsurance agreemerdamfcertain of the Sellers to Hannover Re. These
recapture and reinsurance transactions and theiop\agreements each had an effective date of dadua
2009. SRUS and SRLB remain responsible for cettabilities and obligations to SLD and SLDI under
their reinsurance agreements with these partidsetextent attributable to periods prior to Janugrg009,
and SRUS and SRLB collateralized these obligatiorid September 30, 2009 by depositing assetaust tr
accounts established for the benefit of SLD and ISEBIlowing the transfer of assets with respecthi®
recaptures noted above, we were released of atsbgalicyholder liabilities on the sale of the Awgd
Business. The release of such liabilities resuite@ pre-tax gain of $703.6 million, after transawc
expenses and related costs. This gain was algecsub certain contingencies, which reduced trestpk
gain recognized in the nine month period of 20097%03.2 million, of which $642.4 million, $59.8 iin

and $1.0 million were recognized in the first, set@and third quarters of 2009, respectively. Thedists

the potential for an additional $0.4 million ganke recognized in the fourth quarter of 2009. sEhgains
have limited impact on our current liquidity positi See Note 12, “Sale of a Block of Life Reinse
North America Business” for a summary of the cormguua of the pre-tax gain, including additional dsta
on the gain contingencies.

As of January 1, 2009, Ballantyne Re no longeroissolidated within the financial statements of SRGL
Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Hannover Reidypagreed to assume the mortality risk for all
recaptures of business from Ballantyne Re. Assumpby Hannover Re of this obligation constituted a
reconsideration event related to the consolidatibBallantyne Re under Financial Accounting Staddar
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards CodificatiolAGC”) Subtopic 810-10, Consolidation - Overall
(“FASB ASC 810-10"), which incorporates FASB Integfation No. 46R “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No."§{1FIN 46R"). We subsequently completed a primary
beneficiary analysis and concluded that we no lorage the primary beneficiary of Ballantyne Re as
defined within FASB ASC 810-10. The impact of dmsolidating Ballantyne Re resulted in a one-time
non-cash gain of $1,150 million in the first quartd 2009, with no impact on our current or future
liquidity position. For further discussion on timpact of the de-consolidation of Ballantyne Res Blote
13, “Collateral Finance Facilities”.

In order to further preserve liquidity, we begarfedeéng interest payments, as of March 4, 2009, on
floating rate capital securities and trust preférsecurities issued and sold through certain statutusts
that we previously established. Under the termgheke securities, we are entitled to defer interes
payments for up to 20 consecutive quarterly peri&te Note 7, “Debt and Other Funding Arrangements”
and Note 15, “Subsequent Events”.

Through negotiated repurchases, we extinguishedamnaggregate basis the $100 million payment
obligation falling due on March 12, 2009, in redpet the Premium Asset Trust (“PATS”) funding
agreement to which SALIC was a party, resultingigain on the extinguishment of $53.5 million ie th
first quarter of 2009. See Note 7, “Debt and Othending Arrangements”.



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
September 30, 2009
1. Organization and Business (continued)
Regulatory Considerations

In addition to executing on our areas of stratefgicus, we continue to operate with certain reguiato
considerations.

e The fair value of the securities in certain quaitifyreserve credit trust accounts declined sigaittty in
late 2007 and during much of 2008 such that, abaepérmitted statutory accounting practice, SRUS
would have been forced to take credit on its stayutinancial statements as of September 30, 200&a
subsequent periods for less than the full amounhefrelated obligations reinsured by SRUS to Oykne
Re, Inc. (“Orkney Re”), Orkney Re Il plc (“OrkneyeRI”) and SALIC. This shortfall in reserve credit
would have placed significant financial stress uffon statutory capital position of SRUS and, imfuhe
solvency of SALIC and SRGL. As a result, SRUS esjed and received approval from the Delaware
Department of Insurance (the “Department”) for enited accounting practice (the “Permitted Pragfic
as of September 30, 2008, related to the OrknegrigeOrkney Re Il securitizations as well as themes
credit trusts with respect to reinsurance cede&AdIC. In connection with SRUS’ receipt of the
Permitted Practice, SRUS consented to the issuantiee Department on January 5, 2009, of an Orfler o
Supervision against SRUS (the “Order of Supervi§idan accordance with 18 Del. C. 85942. The Order
of Supervision requires, among other things, thpdb@nent’s consent to any transaction by SRUS deitsi
the ordinary course of business or with its affd® and in large part formalized certain reporting
obligations and processes already informally imgetad between SRUS and the Department during 2008.
The original Order of Supervision subsequently amended and replaced with an Extended and Amended
Order of Supervision, dated April 3, 2009 (the “Amded Order”), which amends and clarifies certain
matters contained within the original Order of Swupmon. See Note 11, “Regulatory and Rating
Agencies”.

* On February 17, 2009, citing, among other things, durrent economic conditions and the uncertaifity
the conditions that lay ahead, the Insurance Cosiarisr of the State of Delaware (the “Insurance
Commissioner”) issued an emergency order amendiglgviare Insurance Regulation 81215 relating to
Recognition of Preferred Mortality Tables for use Determining Minimum Reserve Liabilities (the
“Preferred Mortality Table Emergency Regulation”hdaan emergency order amending Delaware
Insurance Regulation §1212 relating to ValuationLé Insurance Policies (the “X-Factor Emergency
Regulation”, and together with the Preferred Mattalable Regulation, the “Emergency Regulations”).
Generally, the Preferred Mortality Table Emergerfggulation allows, upon receipt of the Insurance
Commissioner’s approval, use of the 2001 CSO PedeClass Structure Mortality Table as the minimum
valuation standard for policies issued after Jandar2004. In connection with this requirement,UsR
sought, and on February 26, 2009, obtained, therdnse Commissioner’s approval for use of the 2001
CSO Preferred Class Structure Mortality Table ircoadance with the Preferred Mortality Table
Emergency Regulation. The X-Factor Emergency Reiui relaxes existing constraints related to the X
factor assumptions used in the calculation of stayureserves. For statutory accounting purposes,
Emergency Regulations by their terms are effedtivevaluations on and after December 31, 2008.atAs
March 31, 2009, the implementation of the EmergeRegulations resulted in a $227 million increase in
SRUS’ statutory capital and surplus. Accordingly,the absence of the Emergency Regulations, SRUS’
risk based capital as of December 31, 2008 may hesudted in further regulatory action against SRUS
As provided in each of the emergency orders, tearbnce Commissioner exposed each of the Emergency
Regulations for public comment, which comment pesiexpired on April 6, 2009. Each emergency order
pursuant to which the respective Emergency Regulatias promulgated was effective until September 1,
2009, or until adopted pursuant to the Delaware ihistrative Procedures Act. The Emergency
Regulations were adopted into law pursuant to thlaWare Administrative Procedures Act on September
1, 2009. Substantially similar regulations were @#dd by the members of the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC") during the 2009 IgAFall National Meeting. As such, the
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1. Organization and Business (continued)

Emergency Regulations no longer are required toeperted as prescribed practices in SRUS’ statutory

financial statements for the third quarter of 2@0@ later periods.

Run-off Strategy

With the completion of the previously describedatggic actions and continued compliance with the

supervision requirements of the Department, we exipecontinue to pursue our run-off strategy fog temaining
business, whereby we continue to receive premiymag, claims and perform key activities under our aigrnmg
reinsurance treaties. Through expense reductiodsv@nagement of investments and reinsurance casis,four
goal is to continue to satisfy our reinsurance atiebr obligations and to maintain a risk basedtaapatio above
the company action level prescribed by Delawaredad above any risk based capital-based recaptreshiolds in
our reinsurance agreements with ceding companhs. assurances can be given that we will be suadessf
implementing this strategy. In light of our rurf-strategy, and given the completion of the striatedternatives
outlined above, the special committee formed by Board of Directors (the “Board”) on January 21080wvas
terminated on February 28, 2009.

While pursuing our runoff strategy, we magnfr time to time, if opportunities arise, purchaseprivately
negotiated transactions, open market purchasey ondans of general solicitation or tender offerotierwise,
additional amounts of our outstanding debt, norrgptpreferred securities, and other liabilities. nyAsuch
purchases will depend on a variety of factors idirig but not limited to available corporate liquidicapital
requirements and indicative pricing levels. The ants involved in any such transactions, individgall in the
aggregate, may be material. For further discussiorour outstanding securities, see Note 7, “Deiat @ther
Funding Arrangements” and Note 15, “Subsequent &en

Business

We have written reinsurance business that is whallypartially retained in one or more of our reimsce
subsidiaries. We have ceased writing new busiaeds as noted above, have completed the sale didaheired
Business which was a large block of business inLdarReinsurance North America segment. Withshke of the
Wealth Management business and Life Reinsuranegnational segment in 2008, together with the séléhe
Acquired Business in our Life Reinsurance North Amgsegment in the first quarter of 2009, operpticisions

and performance assessment of the Company is nofermed without reference to any separate segments.

Accordingly, we do not present information aboutidict operating segments for periods after Januia®p09.

We have assumed risks associated with primaryriferance, annuities and annuity-type policies. réilesure
mortality, investment, persistency and expensesrizkUnited States life insurance and reinsurar@apanies.
Most of the reinsurance assumed is through autontegaties, but in 2006 we also began assuming sk a
facultative basis. We suspended bidding for nesirless on March 3, 2008, and at that time, we bégmrnng
notices cancelling the acceptance of new reinseraisks for all open reinsurance treaties. Thenass we
historically have written falls into two categoridsaditional Solutions and Financial Solutionsdasailed below.

Traditional SolutionsWe reinsure the mortality risk on life insuramaicies written by primary insurers. The
business often is referred to as traditional lignsurance. We wrote our Traditional Solutions bess
predominantly on an automatic basis. This meantsviieaautomatically reinsured all policies written & ceding
company that met the underwriting criteria spedifie the treaty with the ceding company. As disedssherein, we
completed in the first quarter of 2009 the salélémnover Re of the Acquired Business, which busirggeerally
was a part of our Traditional Solutions business.

Financial Solutions Financial Solutions include contracts under whisb assumed the investment and

persistency risks of existing, as well as newlytteri, blocks of business that improve the finanpdition of our
clients by increasing their capital availabilitydastatutory surplus. The products reinsured inchmguities and
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1. Organization and Business (continued)

annuity-type products, cash value life insurancd, do a lesser extent, disability products that iar@a pay-out
phase. This line of business includes acquiredtisolsl products in which we provided our clients hwixit
strategies for discontinued lines of business,eddslocks of business, or lines of business notigimg a good fit
for a client’s growth strategies.

Life insurance products that we reinsure includarlyerenewable term, term with multi-year guarastee
ordinary life and variable life. Retail annuityoplucts that we reinsure include fixed deferred @@

For these products, we wrote reinsurance genemallthe form of yearly renewable term, coinsurance o
modified coinsurance. Under yearly renewable temm,share only in the mortality risk for which weceive a
premium. In a coinsurance or modified coinsuraazangement, we generally share proportionatebflimaterial
risks inherent in the underlying policies, incluglimortality, lapses and investments. Under sucheagents, we
agree to indemnify the primary insurer for all opartion of the risks associated with the undedyinsurance
policy in exchange for a proportionate share ofrpuens. Coinsurance differs from modified coinswemwith
respect to the ownership of the assets suppotti@geserves. Under our coinsurance arrangememtgrship of
these assets is transferred to us, whereas, infiegbdioinsurance arrangements, the ceding compatains
ownership of these assets, but we share in thetiment income and risk associated with the assets.

As discussed above, however, we have ceased wrigmg reinsurance treaties and generally no longer a
accepting any new reinsurance risks under existaggies or contracts with ceding companies.

2. Basis of presentation
Basis of Presentation

Accounting Principles - Our consolidated financ&tements are prepared in accordance with acogunti
principles generally accepted in the United Stateémerica (“U.S. GAAP”). Certain items in the priperiod
financial statements have been reclassified to aramfto the current period presentation. These dited
consolidated financial statements should be readoimunction with both the audited consolidatedaficial
statements and notes thereto for the year endeeiniiesr 31, 2008.

Going Concern - These consolidated financial stateéshave been prepared using accounting principles
applicable to a going concern, which contemplabesrealization of assets and the satisfaction affillties and
commitments in the normal course of business. @ilityato continue as a going concern is dependgrgn our
ability to successfully meet our obligations in amrmer that addresses ongoing regulatory requirenzard capital,
liquidity and collateral needs. There can be rsumce that any of the actions we have takenaor ful take as
described in Note 1 above will be successful inpsgpg funds in amounts and at times necessary éetrour
liquidity requirements in future periods. Thesenswlidated financial statements do not give effectany
adjustments to recorded amounts and their clagsisic which would be necessary if we were unableotatinue as
a going concern. We have a shareholders’ defich3d®.5 million as of September 30, 2009.

In the event that for any reason we fail to complth the Department’s Amended Order, or in the ¢vba
financial condition of SRUS materially was to dedeate, the Department may take action to seizérobof SRUS
under applicable insurance law. Such a seizurddyolace control of all management decisions of SRuth the
Department, including with respect to controllirgsh flows, settling claims and paying obligatiorihe primary
objective of the Department would be to protectititerests of the policyholders and ceding insuveith whom
SRUS has contracted and would not be to protecintegests of SRGL, SALIC, the shareholders or ather
stakeholders of the Company. A seizure of SRUSIdvdnave numerous consequences, including potegntiall
triggering ceding company recapture rights on raiaisce agreements with us. Such seizure also eaalytb the
need for SALIC and SRGL to seek bankruptcy protectiBased upon management’s preliminary analysthe
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event of bankruptcy, SRGL and SALIC may not havfigant funds to pay creditors or the ability teezute an
orderly run-off strategy.

Consolidation - The consolidated financial statetm@mclude the assets, liabilities and results pdrations of
SRGL and its subsidiaries and all variable inteesgities for which we are the primary beneficiayy defined in
FASB ASC 810-10. All significant inter-company teattions and balances have been eliminated on lgdatsan.

As at September 30, 2009, we consolidate two noowtse securitizations: Orkney Re and Orkney Re I
Effective January 1, 2009, we no longer consolidi®allantyne Re, see Note 13, “Collateral Finanaeilkies”.

Estimates, Risks and Uncertainties - The preparaifoconsolidated financial statements in confoyniith
U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimatesagedmptions that affect the amounts reported én th
consolidated financial statements and accompanyioigs. Actual results could differ materially frothose
estimates and assumptions used by management. @tisignificant assumptions are for:

* investment valuation;

» accounting for derivative instruments;

» assessment of risk transfer for structured inswamd reinsurance contracts;
e estimates of premiums;

» valuation of present value of in-force business;

» establishment of reserves for future policy besgfit

e amortization of deferred acquisition costs;

e retrocession arrangements and amounts recoverabteréinsurers;

* interest sensitive contract liabilities; and

* income taxes, deferred taxes and determinationeofaluation allowance.

We review and revise these estimates as approphateadjustments made to these estimates arectredlen
the period the estimates are revised.

All tabular amounts are reported in thousands ofddnStates dollars, except share and per shae dats
otherwise noted.

3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASC Consolidation Section 810-10-65, Consotida — Overall — Transition and Open Effective Date
Information (formerly FASB Statement No. 160, Nonotolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Stateents)

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB AS@d0tidation Section 810-10-65, Consolidation — @ller
Transition and Open Effective Date Information (‘6B ASC 810-10-65") formerly SFAS No. 160,
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financ&tiatements — an amendment of Accounting ReseatighiBu
(“ARB”) No. 51" (“SFAS No. 160"), which aims to improve the redeece, comparability and transparency of the
financial information that a reporting entity prdes in its consolidated financial statements bwldisthing
accounting and reporting standards surrounding ownalling interests, or minority interests, whiehre the
portions of equity in a subsidiary not attributabdlirectly or indirectly, to a parent. The owneslinterests in
subsidiaries held by parties other than the pasdmll be clearly identified, labeled and presentedthe
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position withquity, but separate from the parent’s equity. @hwunt of
consolidated net income attributable to the pasmat to the noncontrolling interest must be cleatgntified and
presented on the face of the Consolidated Stateneéribcome. Changes in a parent’s ownership iatesbile the
parent retains its controlling financial interest its subsidiary must be accounted for consistealyequity
transactions. A parent’s ownership interest in bsgliary changes if the parent purchases additiomalership
interests in its subsidiary, sells some of its owhip interests in its subsidiary, the subsidi@goquires some of its
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ownership interests or the subsidiary issues amtditiownership interests. When a subsidiary is deulidated, any
retained noncontrolling equity investment in themier subsidiary must be initially measured at Yailue. The gain
or loss on the de-consolidation of the subsidiarymieasured using the fair value of any noncontliequity
investment rather than the carrying amount of th&ined investment. Entities must provide suffitidisclosures
that clearly identify and distinguish between tieiests of the parent and the interests of thecartrolling

owners. FASB ASC 810-10-65 is effective for fisgahrs, and interim periods within those fiscal ge&eginning
on or after December 15, 2008. We included the mecdth disclosures required by FASB ASC 810-10-66un

consolidated financial statements beginning inrporting period ended March 31, 2009.

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Elssures (formerly FASB Statement No. 157, Fair
Value Measurements)

As of January 1, 2008, we adopted FASB ASC Topig, &air Value Measurements and Disclosures (“FASB
ASC 820"), formerly SFAS No. 157air Value Measurements'("SFAS No. 157”). This statement defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring failne and expands disclosures about fair value measunts. The
adoption of FASB ASC 820 did not have a materiglaat on our consolidated financial statements.

FASB ASC Section 815-10-65, Derivatives and HedgirgOverall — Transition and Open Effective Date
Information (formerly FASB Statement No. 161, Disdures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities)

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB ASC Section-80%5, Derivatives and Hedging — Overall —
Transition and Open Effective Date Information (‘68 ASC 815-10-65"), formerly SFAS No. 16Disclosures
About Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitig§SFAS No. 161"). FASB ASC 815-10-65 establishes
reporting standards that require enhanced disagsabout how and why derivative instruments arel,usew
derivative instruments are accounted for under FASE Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and howwadive
instruments affect an entity’s financial conditidimancial performance, and cash flows. FASB ASG-20-65 is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiit those fiscal years, beginning on or after Nobeml5, 2008.
The adoption of FASB ASC 815-10-65 did not have atemal effect on our consolidated financial coioitor
results of operations.

FASB ASC Subtopic 860-40, Transfers and Servicing ransfers to Qualifying Special Purpose Entitiewlfich
incorporate FSP FAS No. 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8, Eahced Disclosure Requirements Related to Transfafrs
Financial Assets and Variable Interest Entities)

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 140-4 FIhd 46(R)-8, “Disclosures by Public Entities
(Enterprises) about Transfers of Financial Assetd interests in Variable Interest Entitie§"FSP 140-4"), which
are now incorporated in FASB ASC Subtopic 860-4an§fers and Servicing — Transfers to Qualifying&al
Purpose Entitie§"FASB ASC 860-40"). FASB ASC 860-40 amends FASREit8iment No. 140 “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets andngxishments of Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 140”) to gaire
additional disclosures regarding a transferor'stinamg involvement with transferred financial assen a
securitization or asset-backed financing arrangeémehSB ASC 860-40 also amends FIN 46 (revised D
2003) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitiesp expand the disclosure requirements for vadainterest
entities (“VIES”) to include information regardirtge decision to consolidate the VIE, the naturaraf changes in
risks related to a VIE, and the impact on the gstiinancial statements due to the involvemenhwitVIE. Those
variable interests required to comply with the gmice in FASB ASC 860-40 include the primary bernaficof the
VIE, the holder of a significant variable inter@std a sponsor that holds a variable interest. EurtfASB ASC
860-40 requires enhanced disclosures for certaonssps and holders of a significant variable irgena a
qualifying special purpose entity. The provisioid=F&SB ASC 860-40 are effective for the first refpog period
ending after December 15, 2008, and comparativeadisres are not required. We included the enhanced
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disclosures required by FASB ASC 860-40 in the sidtethe consolidated financial statements begiiinthe
reporting period ended December 31, 2008, and tire been no significant changes to disclose @920

FASB ASC Section 820-10-65, Fair Value Measurememtsd Disclosures — Overall — Transition and Open
Effective Date Information (formerly FSP FAS No. 154, Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Lelv
of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Signifantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions ThaAte Not
Orderly)

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC $ett820-10-65, Fair Value Measurements and Disctssu
Overall — Transition and Open Effective Date Infation (“FASB ASC 820-10-65"), formerly FSP FAS Nkb7-4,
“Determining Fair Value When the Volume and LevélAativity for the Asset or Liability Have Signdiatly
Decreased and ldentifying Transactions That Are Quterly” (“FSP No. 157-4"). FASB ASC 820-10-65 provides
additional guidance for estimating fair value it@cance with SFAS No. 157, emphasizing that ef/éimere has
been significant decrease in the volume and lefi@ctivity for the asset or liability and regardiesf valuation
technique(s) used, the objective of a fair valueasneement remains the same. FASB ASC 820-10-65% Iskal
effective for interim and annual reporting periageding after June 15, 2009 and shall be appliedpacively.
Early adoption is permitted for periods ending aftéarch 15, 2009. Earlier adoption for periods egdbefore
March 15, 2009 is not permitted. The adoption ofSBAASC 820-10-65 did not have a material effectoon
consolidated financial condition or results of Ggigms.

FASB ASC Section 825-10-65, Financial Instruments ©verall — Transition and Open Effective Date
Information (formerly FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1nterim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments)

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC $act825-10-65, Financial Instruments — Overall -afsition
and Open Effective Date Information (“FASB ASC 8P3-65"), formerly FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-
“Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financiaistruments”(FSP No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-1"). FASB ASC
825-10-65 was issued to require disclosures alzuvdlue of financial instruments for interim repiog periods of
publicly traded companies as well as in annualrfoia statements, and for those disclosures atimmteeporting
periods to be in a format that summarized finangiédrmation. FASB ASC 825-10-65 shall be effeetifor
interim reporting periods ending after June 15,200ith early adoption permitted ending after Mafdhy 2009.
We included the summarized financial informatiosctbsure required by FASB ASC 825-10-65 in the sidtethe
consolidated financial statements beginning inititerim reporting period ended June 30, 2009.

FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events (formerly BAStatement No. 165, Subsequent Events)

In May 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC Topic 855)saquent Events (“FASB ASC 855"), formerly SFAS
No. 165, “Subsequent Events("SFAS No. 165”). This statement is intended toablsh general standards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that oefter the balance sheet date, but before the fiabstatements are
issued or are available to be issued. FASB ASCr8§&ires the disclosure of the date through whitlentity has
evaluated subsequent events and the basis foratke—dthat is, whether that date represents the tbatfinancial
statements were issued or were available to bedss@his disclosure should alert all users oftfgial statements
that an entity has not evaluated subsequent eefteisthe date in the set of financial statemerisd presented.
The Company adopted FASB ASC 855 during the secuadter of 2009 and evaluates subsequent eveotsgtnr
the date its financial statements are filed. Tdepsion of this standard did not have an impacthenCompany’s
financial position or results of operations.
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FASB Statement No. 167, Amendments to FASB Intetat®on No. 46(R) as referenced in FASB ASC Section
105-10-65, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Overall — Transition and Open Effective Date
Information

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. I&mendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46()SFAS No.
167") which is referenced in the transition guideb in FASB ASC Section 105-10-65, Generally Acedpt
Accounting Principles — Overall — Transition and eDpEffective Date Information, until integrated anthe
Codification. This statement amends Interpretafti{R) to require an enterprise to perform an aiglys
determine whether the enterprise’s variable intevewvariable interests give it a controlling firdal interest in a
VIE. SFAS No. 167 also requires ongoing reassestaranwhether an enterprise is the primary bereficof a
VIE. This statement shall be effective as of thgitweing of each reporting entity’s first annual ogjing period that
begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periadthin the first annual reporting period, and foterim and
annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlier apgpion is prohibited. We are currently evaluating thotential
impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 167 on our ctidated financial condition and results of operatio

FASB ASC Topic 105, Generally Accepted Accountingniples (formerly FASB Statement No. 168, The FBS
Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchyf Generally Accepted Accounting Principles-a
replacement of FASB Statement No. 162)

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC Topic 108&ndgally Accepted Accounting Principles (“FASB
ASC 105"), formerly SFAS No. 168,The FASB Accounting Standards Codification ane tHierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles-a replaeetmof FASB Statement No. 162" (“FASB No. 168This
statement is a replacement of SFAS No. 18Re‘ Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Eipres” and
aims to establish theASB ASGas the source of authoritative accounting primsnd the framework for selecting
the principles used in the preparation of finangttements of non-governmental entities that aesemted in
conformity with U.S. GAAP. FASB ASC 105 is effedti for financial statements for interim or annuatipds
ending on or after September 15, 2009. FASB ASCuillthave no impact on our financial condition r@sults of
operations as it only changes the referencingnafiftial accounting standards and does not changkeorexisting
U.S. GAAP.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-05, Fair ValiMeasurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) — Measgri
Liabilities at Fair Value

In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Stadsldadpdate No. 2009-05, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures (Topic 820) — Measuring Liabilities Rair Value (“ASU No. 2009-05"). This update proegd
amendments to FASB ASC Subtopic 820-10, Fair Valleasurement and Disclosures-Overall, for the faiue
measurement of liabilities. ASU No. 2009-05 pregctlarification in using valuation techniques rieeasuring fair
value of liabilities, estimating the fair value afliability and also clarifies Level 1 fair valueeasurements of a
liability. ASU No. 2009-05 is effective for therdi reporting period (including interim periods)giing after its
August 2009 issuance. We are currently reviewil8JANo. 2009-05 105 to determine whether this walvd an
impact on our financial condition or results of cat@ns.
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4, Investments

Effective January 1, 2008, our invested assets wkassified as trading and the balances in fixedurity
investments - available-for-sale and preferred kstoavailable-for-sale were transferred to tradiegurities.
Additionally, as of January 1, 2008, the balancaimfealized appreciation on investments of $38.ianj which
previously was included in accumulated other coimpnsive income (loss), was reclassified and recbiddhe
Consolidated Statement of Operations caption “Balized and unrealized losses”.

Trading investments are recorded at fair markeuezalUnrealized holding gains and losses on trading
investments are included in earnings. Interestésrded based upon the stated coupon rate as@ooent of net
investment income. For securities with uncertaishcflows, the investments are accounted for utigercost
recovery method, whereby all principal and coupagnpents received are applied as a reduction otaneying
value. Cash flows for trading securities are dfiskin Investing Activities on the Consolidateth&ment of Cash
Flows based on the nature and purpose for whichetlaged securities were acquired.

The portion of net unrealized gains for the ninenthe ended September 30, 2009 that relates tontradi
securities still held at the reporting date is $853illion. For the three months ended Septemi®er2809, there
were $166.8 million in unrealized gains.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted FASB ASC 820 as of January0Q8.2FASB ASC 820 establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair valuean@ty based on the quality of inputs used to meafr value, and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair valuesmmeanents. The hierarchy gives the highest pridoitynadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for identical assetliabilities (Level 1 measurements) and thedstpriority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Tleetlavels of the fair value hierarchy under FASBCA®R0 are
described below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instrumemtaictive markets.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instrumentsactive markets; quoted prices for identical or &Emi
instruments in markets that are not active; and ehddrived valuations in which all significant irfpuand
significant value drivers are observable in actiarkets.

Level 3 — Model derived valuations in which onemore significant inputs or significant value driseare
unobservable.

As required by FASB ASC 820, when the inputs usetheasure fair value fall within different leveltbe
hierarchy, the level within which the fair value aserement is categorized is based on the lowest ilgput that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itrety. Thus, a Level 3 fair value measurement nmajude inputs
that are observable (Level 1 and 2) and unobsexvdlelvel 3).

Level 1 primarily consists of financial instrumemthose value is based on quoted market prices asistocks
and actively traded mutual fund investments.

Level 2 includes those financial instruments that walued by independent pricing services or valusidg
models or other valuation methodologies. These isodee primarily industry-standard models that oders
various inputs, such as interest rate, credit sbraad foreign exchange rates for the underlyingrfaial
instruments. All significant inputs are observaldederived from observable, information in the kedplace or are
supported by observable levels at which transastare executed in the marketplace. Financial ingnis in this
category primarily include: certain public and @t corporate fixed maturity and equity securitggsyernment or
agency securities; certain mortgage and asset-aga@urities; securities held as collateral; amplegmted assets.
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Level 3 is comprised of financial instruments whéeie value is estimated based on non-binding brgkizes
or internally developed models or methodologiedizitig significant inputs not based on, or corraided by,
readily available market information. This categprimarily consists of certain less liquid fixed tudty and equity
securities where we cannot corroborate the sigmifizaluation inputs with market observable dataditionally,
the Company’s embedded derivatives, all of whighaasociated with reinsurance treaties, are diedsif Level 3
since their values include significant unobservabiputs associated with actuarial assumptions cggr
policyholder behavior. Embedded derivatives areoral with the host instruments in the consolidatethnce
sheet.

At each reporting period, all assets and liabgitare classified in their entirety based on theelsiwevel of
input that is significant to the fair value measnest. Our assessment of the significance of aquéati input to the
fair value measurement in its entirety requiregjudnt, and considers factors specific to the awskdbility, such
as the relative impact on the fair value as a teduhcluding a particular input.

The majority of our fixed maturity and equity seities use Level 2 inputs for the determination aif fsalue.
These fair values are obtained primarily from inetegent pricing services, when available, utilizirgyel 2 inputs.
Where pricing services do not provide fair valubs, pricing services utilize proprietary pricing deds to produce
estimates of fair value primarily utilizing Leveli@puts along with certain Level 3 inputs.

The proprietary pricing models include matrix pmigiwhere we discount expected cash flows utilizimarket
interest rates obtained from third-party sourcesetlaon the credit quality and duration of the unsnt to
determine fair value. For securities that may reotddiably priced using internally developed prgcimodels, broker
guotes are obtained. These broker quotes regrasesxit price but the assumptions used to estalitie fair value
may not be observable and represent Level 3 inputs.

The embedded derivatives in funds withheld at egerinclude the embedded derivatives resulting from
assumed modified coinsurance (“modco”) or coinsceafunds withheld reinsurance arrangements. Thekes
are based upon the difference between the fairevalihe underlying assets backing the modco ocdgumithheld
receivable and the fair value of the underlyingiliies. The fair value of the assets is gener&lsed upon
observable market data using valuation methoddasing those used for assets held directly by Tise fair value
of the liabilities is determined by using markesetvable swap rates as well as some unobservghlésisuch as
actuarial assumptions regarding policyholder bedravi These assumptions require significant managéeme
judgment.

The following table sets forth our assets and ligds that are measured at fair value on a reegrbasis as of
the date indicated:

September 30, 2009

(U.S. dollars in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments
Fixed maturity investments ...........cccceeeeveeeeenee, $ 3,046.0 $ - $ 23470 % 699.0
Preferred StOCK ........covecvvieeeieecreeseeee et sree e 78.9 - 25.2 53.7
Total assets at fair Value .................commmeeereeinnenns 9 3,1249 $ - $ 23722  $ 752.7
Funds withheld at interest — embedded derivatives. (42.6) - - (42.6)
Total liabilities at fair value...............oceeeeeeerrceeenn. $ (42.6) $ - $ - $ (42.6)
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5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following table presents additional informatiliout assets measured at fair value on a recurasig and
for which we have utilized significant unobservafilevel 3) inputs to determine fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservae Inputs (Level 3)

Funds
Fixed Withheld at
Maturities Interest —
& Preferred Embedded
(U.S. dollars in millions) Stock Derivatives Total
Beginning balance at January 1, 2009................. $ 813.0 $ (3475) $ 465.5
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in net inComMe ............cceoeev v eeveeeneeee, (28.9) 304.9 276.0
Purchases, issuances and settlements.............. (6.8) - (6.8)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3.........cooun...... (24.6) - (24.6)
Ending balance at September 30, 2009................ $ 7527 $ (42.6) _$ 710.1

The portion of net unrealized losses for the ninentins ended September 30, 2009 that relates tingrad
securities still held at the reporting date is $5illion for Level 3.

We review the fair value hierarchy classificatiamsarterly. Changes in the observability of the aibn
attributes may result in a reclassification of agrtfinancial assets or liabilities. Such reclasatfons are reported
as transfers in and out of Level 3 at the beginfféirgvalue for the reporting period in which tHeaciges occur.

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As discussed above, fair value of financial asaets liabilities is estimated under FASB ASC 820hgsihe
following methods and assumptions:

0] Fixed maturity investments and preferred stock ameied at fair value. See Note 5, “Fair Value
Measurements” for a description of the methodolegied assumptions used to determine the fair \@lfiaancial
instruments carried at fair value.

(i) Other investments carrying value approximatesvailue.

(iii) Funds withheld at interest represent fixed matuntestments held by ceding companies and the fair
values are consistent with the methodologies asdmagtions used to determine the fair value of fireaturities
carried at fair value.

(iv) Fair values for collateral finance facilities pitae the utilization of market observable inputar
any notes issued by the collateral finance faesitihat are wrapped by guarantors, we defined rifieofivalue as
the combination of the issued note and guarantsea Aesult, the fair value of the collateral finarfacilities
incorporates the value of the guarantee, includomsideration of the non-performance risk of thargators.

(v) Fair values for our long term debt were determiwét reference to similar quoted securities.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi) Interest sensitive contract liabilities include amts payable under funding agreements and
investment contracts. The fair value for amoumigable under funding agreements was determinectiiydaparty
service provider. The fair value of investment tcacts, which exclude significant mortality risk, bhased on the

cash surrender value of the liabilities as an axipration of the exit market.

(vii) Embedded derivatives are carried at fair value. Bete 5, “Fair Value Measurements” for a
description of the methodologies and assumptioad s determine the fair value of financial instents carried at
fair value.
September 30, 2009 December 31, 2008
Carrying Estimated Fair Carrying Estimated Fair
(U.S. dollars in thousands) Value Value Value Value
Assets
Fixed maturity investments...... $ 3,045,992 $ 3,045,992 $ 3,781,104 $ 3,781,104
Preferred stock .........c.cccoeenneee 78,888 78,888 79,767 79,767
Other investments..................... 22,899 22,899 22,772 22,772
Funds withheld at interest
(excluding cash)................... 545,816 521,553 1,748,768 1,474,183
Liabilities
Collateral finance facilities ...... $ 1,300,000 $ 1,019,702 $ 3,000,000 $ 188
Long termdebt...........cccceeees 129,500 22,663 129,500 62,000
Interest sensitive
contract liabilities............... 1,802,617 1,499,341 2,025,554 1,739,817
Embedded derivatives........... 42,594 42,594 347,519 347,519
7. Debt and Other Funding Arrangements

Stingray Investor Trust and Stingray Pass-Throughust (together “Stingray”)

On January 12, 2005, SALIC entered into a put agess with the Stingray Investor Trust for an aggteg
value of $325 million, which put agreement relates$325 million aggregate stated amount of 5.90246sP
Through Certificates (the “Pass-Through Certifis8téssued by the Stingray Pass-Through Trust (teagewith the
Stingray Investor Trust, “Stingray”). Under thents of the put agreement, we acquired an irrevecabt option to
issue funding agreements to the Stingray InvestastTin return for the assets in a portfolio of &)t commercial

paper.

Since April 14, 2008, this facility has been fulljilized and $325 million of funding agreements édeen
issued to the Stingray Investor Trust and rematstanding as of September 30, 2009. Funds drawm dm the
facility are included in interest sensitive contriabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

During the third quarter, we acquired $142.4 milliof additional variable interests in Stingray thgh
privately negotiated purchases of a correspondizigd amount of the Pass-Through Certificates, whépresents
a reconsideration event under FASB ASC 810-10.0ASeptember 30, 2009, our maximum exposure to ikss
$28.5 million, as this represents the value ofinuestment in Pass-Through Certificates recorddiked maturity
investments on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.utfiieed a quantitative analysis in determiningttttee holder
of the majority of the Pass-Through Certificatesuldoabsorb the majority of the expected gains @sds of
Stingray. As of September 30, 2009, we determihatiwe are not the primary beneficiary of Stingaaywe do
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7. Debt and Other Funding Arrangements (continued)

not own a majority of the Pass-Through Certificeded, therefore, are not required to consolidaiteg&ty in our
financial statements

For further discussion on Stingray subsequent febeber 30, 2009, see Note 15, “Subsequent Events”.
Premium Asset Trust Series 2004-4

On March 12, 2004, SALIC entered into an unsecfwaeding agreement with the Premium Asset Trustafor
aggregate of $100 million (the “PATS”). The fungiagreement had a stated maturity of March 12, 2009
accrued interest at a rate of three-month LIBOR [@l1922%, payable on a quarterly basis. The andwatunder
this funding agreement was included under intesessitive contract liabilities on the ConsolidaBadance Sheet.

Through negotiated repurchases, we extinguishe@186 million payment obligation falling due on Mharl2,
2009, in respect of the PATS funding agreementchSepurchases were completed for a total condidaraf
$46.5 million compared to the $100 million par alof the PATS. Consequently, in accordance with BASC
Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing, which now ipasates SFAS No. 140,Atcounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Liabilities — ApRacement of FASB Statement 12 recorded a gain on the
extinguishment of the PATS debt of $53.5 millionthe first quarter of 2009. The funding agreememse
included in interest sensitive contract liabilitiesthe accompanying Consolidated Balance SheBeaember 31,
2008.

Deferral of Interest Payments on Floating Rate Cégi Securities and Trust Preferred Securities

In order to further preserve liquidity, we begarediéng interest payments as of March 4, 2009 onfioating
rate capital securities and trust preferred sdearissued and sold through certain statutorygrestablished by us.
These deferrals are permitted by the terms of tldentures governing the securities and have beele mathe
discretion of our Board to preserve liquidity. Weind to continue to defer such interest paymemtshe duration
of the permitted 20 consecutive quarterly peri@dsmaximize liquidity. As of September 30, 2009, leve accrued
and deferred payment of $4.7 million of interedtll @nd SALIC are restricted in their ability to neaklividend
payments in any period where interest payment atiigs on these securities are not current.

For further discussion on the accrued and defepagdnent on our floating rate capital securities &gt
preferred securities subsequent to September 89, 2@e Note 15, “Subsequent Events”.

Non-declaration of Non-cumulative Perpetual Prefexd Shares (“Perpetual Preferred Shares”) Dividends

In accordance with the relevant financial testseunithe terms of the Perpetual Preferred Sharesweave
precluded from declaring and paying dividends antanuary 15, 2009, April 15, 2009 and July 1592@@idend
payment dates. Nonpayment of dividends on Ju)y2089 marked the sixth dividend period for whiéghidends
had not been declared and paid. Pursuant to thestef the Certificate of Designations related e Perpetual
Preferred Shares, the holders of the Perpetuatifeef Shares are entitled to elect two additioir&ctbrs to our
Board in the event dividends on the Perpetual PeddeShares have not been declared and paid foorsimore
dividend periods.

For further discussion on the non-declaration opPwial Preferred Shares dividends, see Note 1bs&uent
Events”.
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8. Mezzanine Equity
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred Shes

On May 7, 2007, we completed the equity investmeanhsaction by MassMutual Capital Partners LLC
(“MassMutual Capital”), a member of the MassMutbalancial Group, and SRGL Acquisition, LDC, an life of
Cerberus Capital Management, L.P. (“Cerberus”)panced by us on November 27, 2006 (the “2007 Nepit&la
Transaction”). Pursuant to the 2007 New Capitadnfaction, MassMutual Capital and Cerberus inveated
aggregate $600 million in us in exchange for 1,000,in the aggregate newly issued Convertible Cativd
Participating Preferred Shares. The gross proceeds $600 million less $44.1 million in closingst®, which
resulted in aggregate net proceeds of $555.9 milli&ach Convertible Cumulative Participating Pnefé Share
has a par value of $0.01 per share with a liquitapreference of $600 per share, as adjusted fadedids or
distributions as described further below.

As of September 30, 2009, MassMutual Capital andb€es hold in the aggregate approximately 68.7%uof
equity voting power, along with the right to desaggmtwo-thirds of the members of our Board.

The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer@ftares are convertible at the option of the holdeany
time, into an aggregate of 150,000,000 ordinaryeshaf SRGL. On the ninth anniversary of issue,@onvertible
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares autoraiyiovill convert into an aggregate of 150,000,08@inary
shares if not previously converted. We are notuireqg at any time to redeem the Convertible Cunudat
Participating Preferred Shares for cash, excefftarevent of a liquidation or a change-in-contrard.

We have accounted for the Convertible Cumulativeiépating Preferred Shares in accordance with BAS
ASC Subtopic 470-20, Debt — Debt with Conversiod &ther Options (“FASB 470-20"), which incorporatel§ F
D-98: “Classification and Measurement of Redeemébdeurities”. Dividends on the Convertible Cumulati
Participating Preferred Shares are cumulative aedete daily on a non-compounding basis at a ra®25% per
annum on the stated value of $600 million. Dividemnly will be paid in a liquidation preferencessario upon
our liquidation or change-in-control prior to thantth anniversary. There have been no dividendsuaccin the
period as this scenario is not deemed probableistime. As of September 30, 2009, the amountiiflends not
accrued pursuant to the terms of the Convertible@ative Participating Preferred Shares is $105[lom

To the extent that the Convertible Cumulative Raéting Preferred Shares participate on an aserten
basis in dividends paid on ordinary shares, a spmading reduction will be made to the liquidatpmeference for
the Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferi®ldares. The Convertible Cumulative Participatimgfétred
Shares have a liquidation preference equal to #tefed value, as adjusted for (x) the accretiativifiends and (y)
any cash payment or payment in property of dividead distributions. The holders of Convertible Quaive
Participating Preferred Shares may, among othengshi require us to redeem the Convertible Cumudativ
Participating Preferred Shares upon a change-itraon

Upon a change-in-control, the redemption pricenismount equal to the greater of (i) the statedevalf the
outstanding Convertible Cumulative Participatingf@rred Shares, plus an amount equal to the swaii atcrued
dividends through the earlier of (A) the date ofmant of the consideration payable upon a changmiitrol, or
(B) the fifth anniversary of the issue date of @envertible Cumulative Participating Preferred ®isaior (ii) the
amount that the holder of the Convertible CumuatRarticipating Preferred Shares would have beétieehnto
receive with respect to such change-in-controlt ihad exercised its right to convert all or suchtipa of its
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred ®safor ordinary shares immediately prior to theedaft such
change-in-control.

The liquidation preference of the Convertible Cuative Participating Preferred Shares is not applecance
the Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferf&thres have been converted into ordinary sharedestsibed
above.
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The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer®dares rank, with respect to payment of dividena$ a
distribution of assets upon voluntary or involugtiquidation, dissolution or winding-up (a “Liquadion Event”):
(a) senior to our ordinary shares and to each atlass or series of our shares established by tlaedB the terms of
which do not expressly provide that such class aries ranks senior to or pari passu with the Cdibler
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares as toreany of dividends and distribution of assets upduigaidation
Event; (b) pari passu with each class or seriesuohares, the terms of which expressly provid¢ shch class or
series ranks pari passu with the Convertible CutiveldParticipating Preferred Shares as to paymédividends
and distribution of assets upon a Liquidation Eyvemmtd (c) junior to each other class or series wf securities
outstanding as of the date of the completion of20@7 New Capital Transaction that ranks seniavuoordinary
shares, and to each class or series of our shheeterms of which expressly provide that suchsctasseries ranks
senior to the Convertible Cumulative Participatiiggferred Shares as to payment of dividends andhdison of
assets upon a Liquidation Event and all classesinpreferred shares outstanding as of the coropleti the 2007
New Capital Transaction.

The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer@&ares conversion price ($4.00 per ordinary shaes
lower than the trading value of $4.66 of our ordynshares on the date of issue. This discount kas bccounted
for as an embedded beneficial conversion featumcaordance with FASB ASC 470-20 which incorpordt€s-
98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Securities witheBeficial Conversion Features or Contingently Atjjbke
Conversion Ratios”, and EITF 00-27, “Application ¢dsue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments”
Accordingly, the Company recognized a $120.8 mill@nbedded beneficial conversion feature, whiclhiced the
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred himsue amount shown in Mezzanine Equity and isecdhe
amount of additional paid in capital. Under theaoting guidance above, we had the choice to azd¢het full
intrinsic value of the embedded beneficial comverdeature out of retained earnings over the ngw yerm of the
shares or immediately due to the ability of thedkeod to convert at their option at any time. Gitles ability of the
holders to convert at any time, we elected to aedtee full intrinsic value of the embedded beriaficonversion
feature on the date of issue. As we did not hauweratained earnings on the date of issue, the 812dlion
beneficial conversion feature was accreted outldftenal paid in capital into Mezzanine Equity.

Pursuant to our Securities Purchase Agreementy dddgember 26, 2006 (the “Agreement”), with Massvait
Capital and Cerberus, certain representations amtlanties were provided relating to our statutocgoainting
records. As discussed in Note 14 “Commitments @odtingencies”, certain statutory accounting ernaese
discovered in 2006 which have resulted in an indéaation claim against us, by MassMutual and Ceube
Resolution of this claim could result in a changéhe conversion formula on these securities.

9. Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the three months ended ®bpte30, 2009 was $1.1 million and for the nine then
ended September 30, 2009 was $3.2 million.

The income tax expense for the three and nine rsoertided September 30, 2009 principally is in retspkec
additional interest and penalties on accrued thilities. The net income of our Bermuda and Caymatities are
not subject to income tax. The net income of ous.land Irish entities did not generate a tax expeother than
interest and penalties on accrued tax liabilitise to the availability of tax losses from priox tgears. The
utilization of tax losses results in a reductiordigferred tax assets and a corresponding reduictitive valuation
allowance established against those deferred &etas

Income tax benefit for the three months ended Semte 30, 2008 was $15.0 million and for the ninenthe
ended September 30, 2008 was $8.6 million.

The tax benefits for the three and nine months @®ptember 30, 2008 were primarily related tongorel of
a liability concerning FASB ASC Subtopic 740-10¢cdme Taxes — Overall (“FASB ASC 740-10"), which
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incorporates FIN 48, due to the statute of limitasi expiring in 2008. The net losses of our Bermaidd Cayman
entities did not generate deferred tax assetseas B no income tax in those jurisdictions. Thelosses of our
U.S. and Irish entities generated deferred taxtasgieich we recorded a full valuation allowanceiagiadue to the
uncertainty as to the realization of those assets.

At December 31, 2008, we had total unrecognizedbenefits (excluding interest and penalties) of 26
million, the recognition of which would result in$d.6.9 million benefit at the effective tax ratét September 30,
2009, we had total unrecognized tax benefits (ehotpinterest and penalties) of $131.8 million, theognition of
which would result in an $18.2 million benefit heteffective tax rate. The decrease in the tatedeognized tax
benefits was due to the removal of the Ballantyree RASB ASC 740-10 reserve and statute of limitation
expiration on some positions.

Our deferred tax asset is principally supportedhayreversal of deferred tax liabilities. We havaintained a
full valuation allowance against any remaining adefierred tax asset in the U.S., given our inabitityely on future
taxable income tax projections.

We file our tax returns as prescribed by the tavslaf the jurisdictions in which we operate. AsS&ptember
30, 2009, we remained subject to examination irfahewing major tax jurisdictions for the yeardinated below:

Major Tax Jurisdictions Open Years
u.s.
Life GroUP «oovveeee e 2006 through 2009
NON-Life GroUp ....ccccceeiiiiiiiieeieeeee et 2006 through 2009
Ireland ........vvviiiiiieiiiiiie e 2005 through 2009

10. Earnings per Ordinary Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based ondlyhi®d average number of ordinary shares outsigratid
assumes an allocation of net income to Converiitlenulative Participating Preferred Shares for teeoga or
portion of the period that this security is outsliiy. Losses are not allocated to Convertible Qative
Participating Preferred Shares. Under the prorssiof FASB ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share (“FASBC
260"), formerly SFAS No. 128, basic earnings pearshare computed by dividing the net loss attribletao
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average nuwmbsghares of our ordinary shares outstandingHerperiod.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated basedemeighted average number of ordinary sharesamdstig plus
the diluted effect of potential ordinary shares@tordance with the if-converted method. In acaoce with FASB
ASC 260, the exercise of options and warrants awvexsion of convertible securities is not assumadss it would
reduce earnings per share or increase loss peax.shar

The following table sets forth the computation asic and diluted earnings per ordinary share utigetwo-

class method and the if-converted method, respagtias required under FASB ASC 260 which incorpes&ITF
No. 03-06, “Participating Securities and the Twas3l Method under FASB Statement No. 128".

24



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)

10.

September 30, 2009

Earnings per Ordinary Share (continued)

Three months ended

Nine months ended

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share
data)

September 30,

2009

September 30,

2008

September 30,

2009

September 30,
2008

Basic income (loss) attributable to
ordinary shareholders

Numerator:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $

Amounts allocable to convertible
cumulative participating preferred shares

201,890

(2,910)

$

(722,654)

$

2,090,184

(30,125)

(19872,137)

Numerator for basic income (loss) per

198,980

(722,654)

$

2,060,059

$ (1,872,137)

ordinary share.......ccccccceeeeeeeii i

Denominator:

Denominator for basic income (loss) per
ordinary share - weighted average
number of
ordinary Shares .........c.cccceeeveeeeenenn, 68,383,370 68,383,370

68,383,370 68,383,370

Basic income (loss) from continuing
operations attributable to ordinary

Shareholders.........cooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 291 $ (1057)  $

30.13 $  (27.38)

Diluted income (loss) attributable to
ordinary shareholders

Numerator:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 201,890 $

(722,654) $ 2,090,184  $ (1,872,137)

Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary

SharehOlders.....cuoveveeeeeeeee e, 201,890 $

(722,654) $ 2,090,184  $ (1,872,137)

Denominator:

Denominator for basic income (loss) per
ordinary share - weighted average
number of

ordinary shares ..........cccccuvviiiiiiieeeeennnn, 68,383,370 68,383,370

150,000,000 -

68,383,370 68,383,370
150,000,000 -

Denominator for dilutive income (loss) per

ordinary share.................. 218,383,370 68,383,370 218,383,370 68,383,370

Diluted income (loss) from continuing
operations attributable to ordinary

SNAreNOIdErS . ....veveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 0.92 $

(10.57) $ 9.57 $  (27.38)

* In accordance with FASB ASC 260, exercise of opsi and warrants or conversion of convertible sgesris not
assumed if the result would be anti-dilutive, sashwhen a loss from continuing operations is regbrtAs a result,
if there is a loss from continuing operations, sashduring the three and nine months ended Septesth@008,
diluted EPS is computed in the same manner as E&#sc Due to the anti-dilutive effect on EPS, dock options
(which are convertible into 4,716,592 ordinary gisapotentially could dilute EPS in the future.
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Order of Supervision

In approving the Permitted Practice described abovélote 1, SRUS consented to the issuance by the
Department on January 5, 2009 of an Order of Sugieny in accordance with 18 Del. C. §5942. The éDrdf
Supervision subsequently was extended and amendépol 3, 2009 with the issuance of the Amendedi€dr
Pursuant to the Amended Order, SRUS generally nagsive prior written consent from the Departmanbrider to
engage in any transaction outside of the ordinatyse of business; make certain payments or inedaio debts,
obligations or liabilities in any transaction of 8illion or greater (provided that this limitatialoes not apply to the
payment of claims, premiums and other third pagtgsurance settlements, in each case of less ttamélion per
payment); engage in new business; lend any otiitdd; invest any of its funds in a manner that ateg from the
plan filed with the Department; commute, novategachor otherwise change any existing reinsuranoé&ract or
treaty; or engage in any transaction with any eelgtarty. Many of these restrictions already wefermally in
place between SRUS and the Department during mi20Gs.

Delaware Emergency Regulations

The Emergency Regulations were adopted into lawyaunt to the Delaware Administrative Proceduresaohct
September 1, 2009.

Ratings

As discussed elsewhere herein, our financial stremgtings and the financial strength ratings of ou
subsidiaries were lowered on several occasione 22007, with a resulting material negative impattoar ability
to achieve our previous goal of attaining an “Af’eetter rating by the middle of 2009. Ratingswth levels also
previously triggered the vesting of contractualagare rights in respect of certain of our reineaeabusiness and
resulted in the increase to a maximum “steppedraf® of certain guarantor fees in respect of tleariization
structures used to finance the Regulation XXX stajureserve requirements associated with busineded by
SRUS to each of Orkney Re and Orkney Re Il. Ihtligf the foregoing and our pursuit of a run-ofastgy for our
remaining business, among other factors, we deteuhthat we no longer intended to utilize capitalthe payment
of ratings fees to maintain the financial strengtid other ratings for us and our operating subsédiaat such
levels. Accordingly, we notified each of the rgtimgencies in early June 2009 that we no longer vl
compensating the agencies for their maintenansedf ratings.

Following this communication, on June 4, 2009, 8tad & Poor’s Corporation (“S&P”), affirmed and the
subsequently withdrew the “CC” counterparty credting of SRGL, the “C” rating of SRGL's Perpetirreferred
Shares, and the “CCC-" counterparty credit andrfima strength ratings of SALIC. At the same ting&P
affrmed and then withdrew the “R” counterparty diteand financial strength ratings of SRUS, the ©C
counterparty credit and financial strength ratinfisScottish Re Life Corporation and the “CCC-" sensecured
rating of the Pass-Through Certificates.

On June 12, 2009, A.M. Best Company Inc. (“A.M. Beaffirmed and then withdrew the financial stréimg
ratings and issuer credit ratings of SALIC, Scattige Life Corporation and Orkney Re. At the sameet A.M.
Best affirmed and then withdrew our issuer credglitng and the rating of our Perpetual Preferred&has well as
our indicative ratings of senior unsecured debhosdinated debt and preferred stock. SRUS’ fingngirength
rating of “E” (Under Regulatory Supervision) andusr credit rating of “rs” was unchanged.

On June 22, 2009, Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) downgiddee issuer default rating of SRGL to “CC” fromCC”
and then withdrew its rating of SRGL. At the satime, Fitch affirmed and then withdrew the insufieancial
strength rating of SRUS. Fitch also has withdrala insurer financial strength rating of SALIC athé rating of
the Pass-Through Certificates and the PerpetudéiPed Shares. As such, Fitch has withdrawn atwf ratings
and no longer will provide analytical coverageéspect of us and our affiliates.
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On August 18, 2009, Moody’s downgraded the insuedimancial strength ratings of SALIC to “Ca” froig”
and SRUS to “Ba3” from “Bal”, before withdrawingthaatings. At the same time, Moody’'s downgradetGa”
from “C” and then withdrew the senior secured mutof the Pass-Through Certificates and our predesteck
rating.

12. Sale of a Block of Life Reinsurance North Améca Business

As previously disclosed, we engaged in 2008 inacgss to sell our entire Life Reinsurance North Acae
Segment. In October 2008, the process led to sixelunegotiations with a prospective buyer; howger
satisfactory transaction for the sale of the eritife Reinsurance North America Segment could rtréached,
primarily as a result of the historic disruptiontime financial markets. Thereafter, in an effartfind ways to
address our capital, liquidity and collateral neadd the concerns of regulators, we pursued tleecfah specific
block of individual life reinsurance in our Northmerican business. These efforts culminated iratirouncement
on February 20, 2009, that we had completed theh@se Agreement with Hannover Re to sell the Aeguir
Business.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Hannover Rehgmed the Acquired Business, which was acquired in
2004 by us from the ING Companies. The AcquirediBss consists primarily of term life reinsurangeiversal
life with secondary guarantees, and yearly renesvédaim business. When we originally purchasedAttguired
Business in 2004, the ING Companies reinsured thdividual life reinsurance business to us on @%0ndemnity
reinsurance basis. A large portion of such busimedaded guaranteed level premium term life insgethat was
subject to the “Regulation XXX" reserve requirengeand universal life policies with secondary gutgas subject
to the “Regulation AXXX” reserve requirements. @ndur 2004 agreement with the ING Companies, N@ |
Companies were obligated to maintain collateraltf@ Regulation XXX and AXXX reserve requiremenfstee
Acquired Business for the duration of such requiets, and financial incentives were provided tooenage us to
replace this financing with alternative third pafityancing. The Acquired Business does not inclbdsiness ceded
by SRUS to Ballantyne Re as the reinsurance tréinsawith this special purpose reinsurance vehigdes novated
and assigned from SRUS to SLD effective Octobe?N8. However, the Acquired Business does inchinge
business recaptured from Ballantyne Re in conneotth a series of recaptures during 2008 in whHgRUS
recaptured business from Ballantyne Re, which lassirthen was recaptured by SLD which in turn cettied
recaptured business to SLDI who ceded it to SRUB (foregoing recaptures, collectively, the “Ballare
Recaptures”), as well as the business recapturednnection with the unwind of our collateral ficarfacility with
HSBC Bank (together with the Ballantyne Recaptuties,“ING Financings”). In connection with eachtbé ING
Financings, SLD ceded the applicable recapturethéss to SLDI, which ceded the recaptured busite &RLB.
SLDI agreed to provide, or cause the provisionook or more letters of credit (“LOCs”) in ordergoovide SLD
with statutory financial statement credit for theess reserves associated with the recaptureddsssin respect of
the ING Financings. As partial consideration focteaf the ING Financings, the Company agreed to theacosts
of the LOCs by paying SLD a facility fee based ba face amount of such LOCs outstanding. The dotese
LOCs was consistent with the pricing schedules foam2004 acquisition agreement with ING Comparasssuch
schedule was amended on May 7, 2007. Upon clobmdtirchase Agreement, Hannover Re assumed theebsisi
related to the ING Financings as part of the AepliBusiness, as well as the obligation to pay ¥&ing and any
future increases in the related LOC fees.

In connection with the Purchase Agreement, the I&@npanies and certain of the Sellers entered into
recapture agreements (and, in specific instancesations to Hannover Re of certain existing reiasoe
agreements) with respect to the Acquired Busiress,the ING Companies and Hannover Re subsequamttyed
into new reinsurance agreements with respect té\tgeired Business immediately thereafter. Thesapture and
reinsurance transactions and the novations hadffactiee date of January 1, 2009. SRUS and SRLBaia
responsible for liabilities and obligations to SbBRd SLDI under their reinsurance agreements withdlparties to
the extent attributable to periods prior to Jandarg2009, and SRUS and SRLB have collateralizesettobligations
by depositing assets in trust accounts establidretie benefit of SLD and SLDI until September 3009.
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The Purchase Agreement also related to the purcraseale of certain assets used by the Sellesninection
with their administration of the Acquired Busindtse “Transferred Assets”) and the transfer ofaiaremployees
from the Sellers to Hannover Re in connection théhe Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, theinéngalease
on SRUS’ Denver office location was assigned tortdaer Re as was a portion of SRUS’ Charlotte offiemtion.
In addition, Hannover Re entered into an admiristeaservices agreement with SRUS pursuant to wHighnover
Re administers the accepted and ceded mortalityndss retained by SRUS and its affiliates. Siryilddannover
Re entered into an administrative services agreeméh the ING Companies pursuant to which HannoRer
administers the Acquired Business and providesitedther administrative services to the ING Conigsn

In accordance with the Purchase Agreement, paynveeits made as follows: (i) the Sellers made recaptu
payments to the ING Companies in an aggregate ameguel to $1,325 million (adjusted for interim joer
earnings from January 1, 2009 to the date of aipsifii) the ING Companies made correspondingahitiremium
payments to Hannover Re, and (iii) Hannover Re nsapgayment to the Sellers in respect of the TraresleAssets
in an amount equal to $18 million.

Following the transfer of assets with respect @ tthcapture payments noted above, we were reledsait
associated policyholder liabilities on the saleta Acquired Business as of the effective dateaofudry 1, 2009.
The release of such liabilities resulted in a pre-gain of $703.6 million, after transaction expenand related
costs. The gain also was subject to certain coatiogs with escrow funding considerations as desdrbelow,
thereby reducing the pre-tax gain recognized inriine months ending September 30, 2009 to $703lmiof
which $642.4 million, $59.8 million and $1.0 milfiavere recognized in the first, second and thirarggus of 2009,
respectively. There exists the potential for adigmhal $0.4 million gain to be recognized in toairth quarter of
2009. This total gain is summarized as follows:

Statement of

(U.S. dollars in millions) Balance Sheet Operations
Transfer of investments ..., $ (1,468.7)
Release of reserve for future policy benefits......... 1,902.9
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities 1.7
Decrease in reinsurance balances and risk fees
receivable ... (6.3)
Decrease in reinsurance balances payable .......... 4.7
Increase in Other asSets ..............eee o vvveeeeennnns 18.7
ESCrOW fUNGING ......vovveeeeeeeee e, (0.4)
Decrease in claims and other policy benefits....... $ 452.6 $ 452.6
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities 275.5
Change in value of embedded derivatives........... $ 275.5 275.5
Release in deferred acquisition costs .. e (24.9)
Acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
NEL ..o eeeeee e eee e, $ (24.9) (24.9)
Total pre-tax gain as at September 30, 2009....... $ 703.2

In connection with the Purchase Agreement, the GommypHannover Re and the ING Companies agreedeto us
commercially reasonable efforts to transfer to Hesen Re certain retrocession agreements under wigchnd/or
the ING Companies ceded to third parties certaksrielated to the Acquired Business. If a ceramount of such
third party retrocessionaires did not consent tchswansfers prior to April 30, 2009, we were regdiunder the
Purchase Agreement to deposit into escrow with ldaenRe by May 14, 2009, a pro-rata amount reledeslich
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retrocession agreements for which consent had meh lobtained as of that date. Pursuant to the Bsech
Agreement, in the event none of the retrocessieaaionsented to transfer their agreements, thenmaxipotential
escrow funding amount was $136.3 million. In theer@vone or more retrocessionaire consents havebeen
obtained by December 31, 2009, the related esanodsfwill be released to Hannover Re. As of theassdunding
requirement date of May 14, 2009, the balance wa8 fillion. As of September 30, 2009, the balaimcéhis
escrow has been reduced to $0.4 million.

13. Collateral Finance Facilities
Ballantyne Re
De-consolidation of Ballantyne Re

Ballantyne Re is a special purpose reinsuranceckeimcorporated under the laws of Ireland. In N2906,
Ballantyne Re issued in a private offering $1.7Hidn of debt to third party investors, $178 miliaof Class C
Notes and $181.2 million in preference shares tblSAand $500,000 in Class D Notes to SRGL.

The securities we own and the rights we held urtberreinsurance agreement with Ballantyne Re were
considered variable interests. At inception, waleated the rights and obligations allocable tovueable interest
holders and determined that we would absorb a iibajof the expected losses. As a result, Ballantiggesince
inception was consolidated in our financial statetse The assets of Ballantyne Re were recorddidexs maturity
investments and cash and cash equivalents. Ourolideted Statement of Operations included the imrent
return of Ballantyne Re as investment income, zedliand unrealized gains and losses and the co#teof
securitization structure were reflected in collatdinance facilities expense. Funds in the séizations were fully
used for the sole purpose of the securitizatiomstemce not available for general corporate puipose

Ballantyne Re is consolidated in our December 8082consolidated audited financial statements anour
consolidated unaudited financial statements fomihe month period ended September 30, 2008. tféedanuary
1, 2009, Ballantyne Re no longer is consolidatetthiwithe financial statements of SRGL. PursuarthéoPurchase
Agreement for the disposal of the Acquired Businessnover Re explicitly agreed to assume the rityrtask for
all recaptures of business from Ballantyne Re. @igposal of the variable interest to absorb mibytaisk
recaptured from Ballantyne Re under the reinsuragreement constituted a reconsideration eventecel® the
consolidation of Ballantyne Re under FASB ASC 810-We subsequently completed a primary beneficiary
analysis and concluded that we no longer are tineapy beneficiary of Ballantyne Re as defined witRASB ASC
810-10 and, as a result, no longer are consoligdallantyne Re into the financial statements ofGERThe de-
consolidation of Ballantyne Re has reduced our clichsted total assets and liabilities by approxiehat$885
million and $2,035 million, respectively, resultifig a one-time non-cash de-consolidation gain oil$a million
which we recognized in the first quarter of 2008isTone-time non-cash de-consolidation gain waseased from
our previous estimate of $750 million disclosedomr December 31, 2008 consolidated financial statém
primarily for consideration of elimination entrieslated to our original investment in Ballantyne. REhis gain has
no impact on our current or future liquidity positi The following exhibits reflect the significabalances
attributable to Ballantyne Re as at the dates atdit below:
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September 30, December 31,

2009* 2008**

(U.S. dollars in millions)

Assets

INVESTMENLS ...ccvviiiiiiiecciec e $ 8158 $ 641.8

Cash and cash equivalents.................cc...... 28.3 235.9

All OthEr @SSEtS ...oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 21.9 7.3

TOtal @SSELS ... $ 866.0 $ 885.0

Liabilities

Reserves for future policy benefits............... $ 2230 $ 241.9

Collateral finance facilities...................... 1,700.0 1,700.0

All other liabilities.............c.coeeveeveioeanene. 70.2 93.2

Total Habilities ............ccoovvrvrrierierieienns $ 19932 § 20351

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2009* 2008** 2009* 2008**
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Revenues
Premiums earned, Net..............c.ccuvveeenes $ 202 % 34.5 $ 61.6 $ 137.6
Investment income, net...........c.c..uvvveeeeee. 8.2 20.0 26.4 70.9
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses).... 52.3 (122.4) 52.2 (787.6)
Total FeVENUES.........vveeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 80.7 $ (67.9) % 1402 $ (579.1)
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits................... $ 199 % 360 $ 520 % 33.0
Acquisition costs and other insurance
EXPENSES, NeL..cceiiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 5.2 8.4 15.8 34.0

Operating eXPeNnSesS.........uveveeeeeeeeiereeeeenns 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.1
Collateral finance facilities expense ............. 16.1 19.0 49.1 61.7
Total benefits and eXpPENnSses ...............w.... $ 414  $ 635 $ 1172 $ 128.8

*Balances and statement of operations are not didased in the unaudited consolidated interim ficiah
statements as of September 30, 2009.

**Balances and statement of operations are cors@dlin the audited December 31, 2008 consolidated
financial statements and the interim consolidatednftial statements for the three and nine mormntidgea
September 30, 2008.

As of September 30, 2009, we had no remaining tioss exposure related to Ballantyne Re sincerdarests
in the Ballantyne Re Class D Notes and Preferreateshare valued at $0 and are classified as tradiogrities on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of Septemb&089, The Class C Notes were contractually writtérduring
the fourth quarter of 2008.
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Following the presentation of the de-consolidatbBallantyne Re discussed herein, we do not intaridture
periods to continue to disclose events or matteistad to Ballantyne Re except if and to the exserwh events
have a material relevance to our financial resuitsondition.

As discussed in the Disclosure Document dated JanR8, 2009, available on our website at www.
scottishre.com, SRUS remains liable for breachdts aEpresentations, warranties, covenants aner atbligations
that relate to periods before the assignment ardtiom to SLD of the reinsurance agreement withddyne Re.

In addition, the Company and SRUS remain respaméibsl certain ongoing covenants and indemnitieserfadthe
benefit of Ballantyne Re and the financial guaresitaf certain of the notes issued by Ballantyne Re.

Orkney |
Related Party Acquisition of Orkney Notes

As discussed in our audited consolidatedrftial statements and notes thereto for the yededDecember
31, 2008, on February 11, 2005, Orkney HoldingsCl b Delaware limited liability company and subaigi of
SRUS (“Orkney 1”), issued and sold in a privateeoifig $850 million in aggregate principal amountSefries A
Floating Rate Insured Notes due February 11, 2@3® Orkney Notes”) which bear interest at a ratehoee
month LIBOR plus 0.53%. The Orkney Notes have wes® only to the collateral pledged by Orkney | ane
guaranteed by MBIA Insurance Corporation. Neitiwer Company, nor SALIC, nor any other affiliateais obligor
or guarantor on the Orkney Notes.

We have been informed by Cerberus that &t of Cerberus acquired from one or more uihiatéd third
parties $700 million in aggregate principal amoahthe Orkney Notes. Neither the Company, Orkne®@rkney
Re nor any of our other subsidiaries were a partthis purchase. No terms of the Orkney Notesnyr & the
underlying transaction documents were changedresudt of this purchase.

Orkney Re I
Orkney Re Il Event of Default, Acceleration and é@osure

On the scheduled interest payment date on May 019,2rkney Re Il was unable to make scheduledeste
payments on the Series A-1 Notes. Failure to nsaioh payments in full when due constitutes an ewtdefault
under the Orkney Re Il indenture (“Orkney EOD”)ssAired, in its capacity as financial guarantohef$eries A-1
Notes, made guarantee payments on the Series AelsNothe amount of $1.2 million. As a resultloé Orkney
EOD, Assured obtained, and will continue to havertain enhanced contractual rights under the tciiosa
documents and additional fees will be accruedHerguarantee coverage.

Among Assured’s enhanced contractual rights aréh@yight to instruct the trustee to declare thagipal of
and the interest on all the Notes to be due andldaymmediately and (b) the right to foreclosemfite Collateral
(as defined in the related indenture). On Jur0@9, Assured instructed the trustee to accelé¢nat®&lotes and the
trustee delivered a notice of acceleration to OykRe Il on June 18, 2009. On June 19, 2009, Assnadified
Orkney Re Il and the trustee that it was electmfpteclose upon the Collateral.

Following these actions, on June 26, 2009, SRUSceseaxl its contractual right under its agreemenith w
Orkney Re Il to withdraw all assets from the resecvedit trust established by Orkney Re Il for benefit of
SRUS. The withdrawn assets were deposited into SREgregated accounts pursuant to the terms of the
reinsurance agreement between SRUS and Orkney @eell'Orkney Re Il Reinsurance Agreement”) whereyt
are held in order to provide reserve credit to SRShe reinsurance liabilities that continue ®deded to Orkney
Re Il and for certain other permissible uses urtderOrkney Re Il Reinsurance Agreement. The tearsf assets
had no impact on our consolidated financial statéme
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On the scheduled interest payment date of August2009, Orkney Re Il was unable to make scheduled
interest payments on the Series A-1 Notes. Assumade guarantee payments on the Series A-1 Notésein
amount of $1.4 million.

For further discussion on the Orkney Re Il schedlufeerest payments on the Series A-1 Notes, sd¢e N
“Subsequent Events”.

14. Commitments and Contingencies
Class Action and Shareholder Derivative Lawsuits

On August 2, 2006, a putative class action lawsag filed against SRGL and certain of its curram #ormer
officers and directors in the U.S. District Cowt the Southern District of New York on behalf opatative class
consisting of investors who purchased SRGL'’s plipli@ded securities between December 16, 2005Jahd28,
2006. Between August 7, 2006 and October 3, 2G8&rsadditional related class action lawsuits Viikrd against
SRGL, certain of its current and former officersl arectors, and certain third parties.

On October 12, 2006, all of the class actions veemesolidated. On December 4, 2006, a consolidatess ¢
action complaint was filed.

The consolidated complaint which was brought onalfebf a putative class consisting of investors who
purchased SRGL's securities between February 105 aad July 31, 2006, alleged violations of varisastions of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetydimg section 10(b), and various rules and sestiof the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The complaingist an unspecified amount of damages, as wellres forms
of relief. SRGL and its former officers and dimst named in the complaint reached agreement nctipte with
the plaintiffs on August 1, 2008 to settle the laitus On September 8, 2008, the court entered dergreliminarily
approving the proposed settlement. In connectibh thie settlement, which formally was approvedhwy court on
December 11, 2008, SRGL contributed $31 millionwbich $5.8 million was paid by SRGL on Octobe2808,
and the remaining $25.3 million was paid by SRGhssirance carriers.

Indemnification

In connection with an examination of the statutancounting books of certain of our operating insoea
subsidiaries, and specifically, the purchase adiogientries made in connection with the 2004 asitjah of the
ING business, we determined that certain intercompaceivables and intercompany claims were nd¢ctfd in
the statutory financial statements of SRUS and $iRBccordance with applicable statutory accounpragtices.
Management determined that as a result of thesesdire statutory surplus for SRD was overstated onmulative
basis at year end 2004, 2005 and 2006, resultirgrigstated statutory surplus at year end 200 @foximately
$285 million after giving effect to these correciso

In addition, management determined that the stgtorplus for SRUS was understated on a cumuléiasgss
at year end 2005 and 2006, resulting in a reststegdtory surplus at year end 2006 of approxima#8§4 million
after giving effect to these corrections.

The restated statutory surplus of each of SRUS @R® met the applicable minimum statutory surplus
requirements at December 31, 2006. None of theseeations impact our historical consolidated ficiah
statements under U.S. GAAP.

Pursuant to the Agreement with MassMutual Capitad &€erberus, we made certain representations and

warranties regarding the statutory financial staets of each of our insurance subsidiaries, inolygdsRD and
SRUS, for the years ended 2003, 2004 and 2005vatidrespect to SRUS but not SRD, the first threartprs of
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2006, including that these statements were prepareginformity with applicable statutory accountimgctices and
fairly present in accordance with such practicaesall material respects, the statutory financiahdition of the
relevant insurance subsidiary at the respectivesdatn light of our discovery of the correctioresdribed above,
we notified MassMutual Capital and Cerberus, asiired by the terms of the Agreement, of the ovéestent of
statutory surplus in SRD at year end 2004 and thderstatement of such statutory surplus at year 20ub
resulting in a cumulative overstatement for the ywar period at year end 2005 of approximately $illlon on an
after-tax basis, and the understatement of statsianplus in SRUS for the year ended 2005 of agprately $14.5
million on an after-tax basis. On November 16, 20@assMutual Capital and Cerberus responded hfyimat us
of their concern that the corrections describedvalioay constitute breaches of certain of the remtasions and
warranties made by us in the Agreement. UndeAtreement, in the event of a claim for losses tesylfrom a
diminution in value, such losses would be deterohibg an independent investment banking firm of oretl
reputation, agreed upon by us and MassMutual Qaguith Cerberus, based on changes in the valuafi®@RGL
using the assumptions and models used by MassMGygital and Cerberus at the time of their decistimvest
in us. Furthermore, should any claim for indenwaifion be made by MassMutual Capital and Cerbehes,
Agreement provides that any decision regardingrdbfgy or settling such claim will be taken by a coittee of
independent directors of our Board of Directors.tHeir November 16, 2007 correspondence, MassNM@apital
and Cerberus requested that we convene a commfttedependent directors. No action has since lbaean by us
or the Investors in respect of this claim. At ttilee, we do not know what the amount of any indifiaisle losses
would be, if any, or what potential defenses oreotlimitations on indemnification may be availalideus under
those circumstances. The Agreement provides thairalemnification claim would be satisfied by astjng the
conversion amount at which the Convertible CumuéatParticipating Preferred Shares issued to Massallut
Capital and Cerberus are convertible into our Gudirshares.

15. Subsequent Events

The subsequent events disclosed in thesesntat the consolidated financials have been ewsdudly
management up to and including the filing of thraficial statements on November 20, 2009.

Stingray

On November 16, 2009, SALIC launched a cash teaffer to purchase any and all of the outstandiagsP
Through Certificates. The tender offer was madthéoholders (the "Holders") of all or part of sueass-Through
Certificates not currently held by SALIC or any auir affiliates upon the terms and subject to theddmns set
forth in the related Offer to Purchase and ConSefititation, dated November 16, 2009 (as it mapbended and
supplemented from time to time, the "Offer to Pas#i’) and the related Consent and Letter of Tratamilated
November 16, 2009 (as it may be amended and supplech from time to time, the “Letter of Transmittahd,
together with the Offer to Purchase, the “Offer’As of the date of the launch of the Offer, $156ffion in
aggregate stated amount of Pass-Through Certificaéze held by third party Holders and thereforgjestt to the
Offer.

In conjunction with the Offer, SALIC also solicitale consent of a requisite percentage of the Hislftbe
“Requisite Consents”) to proposed amendments ttaiceof the related transaction documents. TheiGf not
conditioned upon receipt of the Requisite Conseants, no separate consideration is being offerepaat for the
consents.

The aggregate consideration to be paid by SALI@dnnection with the Offer, subject to any modifioat
thereof and assuming 100% participation prior ta@ober 30, 2009, is expected to be $38.9 milliat {imcluding
accrued income distributions to the date of settletin We expect to fund this aggregate considerdtom current
corporate liquidity. Corporate liquidity has impea since year end 2008 primarily as a result ef hcent
stabilization and subsequent increase in markeategalof our invested assets during the six montisr po
September 30, 2009 and the period since Septerfb@089, the sale of the Acquired Business to Haa@nRe, the
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deferral of interest expense related to our flaptate capital securities and trust preferred seesirand favorable
statutory accounting and regulatory changes aggéctdo SRUS. If we are successful in consummasith@r a

portion of the Offer, we will benefit from the reckd interest payments in future periods as weflan the reduced
principal obligation reflected in the discountedrghase price. No assurances can be given that Webev

successful in acquiring any of the Pass-Throughifidates pursuant to the Offer.

SALIC currently owns $169.4 million of aggregatatetl amount of Pass-Through Certificates (acquatezh
average price of approximately $0.2196 per dolfastated amount), reflecting an increase from ismership on
September 30, 2009 of an additional $27.0 millianaggregate stated amount acquired through a elyvat
negotiated purchase in early October. Our maxinexposure to loss in respect of the Pass-ThrougtifiCates
currently owned by SALIC is $37.5 million reflecgran increase of $9.0 million since September 8092 We are
evaluating the possibility that we have becomepthimary beneficiary of Stingray. In the event wevl become
the primary beneficiary, and if Stingray remaindstanding at year end 2009, we may be requiredhsalidate
Stingray in our financial statements as at andtfier year ended December 31, 2009. In the evenhtwhaare
required to consolidate Stingray, such consoligatimuld be recorded on a purchase accounting bddischase
accounting requires us to recognize the assetsradguhe liabilities assumed, and any noncontrgllinterest in
Stingray at the acquisition date, measured at fagivalues as of that date.

Deferral of Interest Payments on Floating Rate Cégli Securities and Trust Preferred Securities

Subsequent to September 30, 2009, we hesreied and deferred payment of an additional $GIRom of
interest on our floating rate capital securitiesl amst preferred securities. As of November 2002 we have
accrued and deferred payment on a total of $4.€omiof interest.

Non-declaration of Perpetual Preferred Shares Dieitds

In accordance with the relevant financiatdeunder the terms of the Perpetual PreferredeShave were
precluded from declaring and paying dividends en@ttober 15, 2009 dividend payment date.

Orkney Re I
On the scheduled interest payment dateayelber 12, 2009, Orkney Re Il was unable to makeduled

interest payments on the Series A-1 Notes. AsaltteAssured made guarantee payments on the SeteNotes
in the amount of $0.9 million.
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